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RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE, TO AUTHORIZE A HALFWAY HOUSE
WITHIN AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED WITHIN A NB
NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS ZONE, AND IDENTIFIED BY MUNICIPAL ADDRESS
2793 FERNWOOD ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a
public hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 25-050-PC, Open Doors
Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), a request
for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified 2793 Fernwood Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald
Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), had submitted this request, to authorize a Halfway
House within an existing Commercial building located within a NB Neighborhood Business
zone, and identified by municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-
036.000); and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after listening to
many neighbors and much discussion among themselves, voted 14-0-0, to recommend approval of
the proposed Conditional Use, to authorize a Halfway House within an existing Commercial
building located within a NB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified by municipal address
2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-036.000), having determined that said
project, as presented, has been found to promote the public interest at this location; that said use
has been designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and

welfare will be protected; that said housing uvnit will not cause substantial injury to other



property(ies) in the neighborhood in which located; and

WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby
adopts the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that
this Halfway House proposed for the property site identified as 2793 Fernwood Road is
appropriate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, hereby approves the requested Conditional Use, to
authorize a Halfway House within an existing Commercial building located within a NB
Neighborhood Business zone, and identified by municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road (i.e.,
Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-036.000), as related in Case No. 25-050-PC, Open Doors Homeless
Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant}), having determined
that said project, as presented, has been found to promote the public interest at this 160ation, that
said use has been designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety,
and welfare will be protected, that said use will not cause substantial injury(ies) to other
property(ies) in the neighborhood in which located, and that this Half-Way House, conforms to

all regulations for the NB Neighborhood Business zoning district.

...............................................................................................................................................................



RESOLUTION NO,

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO A REQUEST
FOR CONDITIONAL USE, TO AUTHORIZE A HALFWAY HOUSE WITHIN AN
EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED WITHIN A NB NEIGHBORHOOD
BUSINESS ZONE, AND IDENTIFIED BY MUNICIPAL ADDRESS 2793 FERNWOOD
ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a
public hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 25-050-PC, Open Doors
Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), a request
for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified 2793 Fernwood Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald
Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), had submitted this request, to authorize a Halfway
House within an existing Commercial building located within a NB Neighborhood Business
zone, and identified by municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-
036.000); and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after listening to
many neighbors and much discussion among themselves, voted 14-0-0, to recommend approval of
the proposed Conditional Use, to authorize a Halfway House within an existing Commercial
building located within a NB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified by municipal address
2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-036.000), having determined that said

project, as presented, has been found to promote the public interest at this location; that said use

has been designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and



welfare will be protected; that said housing unit will not cause substantial injury to other
property(ies) in the neighborhood in which located; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, having given the Planning
Commission's recommendation full consideration, has determined that this is a matter of general
public concern, and being so, it is in the best interest of the community to hold a public hearing on
this matter before the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, will conduct a public hearing in reference to Case No. 25-
050-PC, Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33
(applicant), on a date to be set and in accordance with all requirements, as prescribed by the City of

Biloxi Land Development Ordinance governing the conduct of public hearings.

...............................................................................................................................................................



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TO DENY A REQUEST FOR CONDITIONAL USE, TO AUTHORIZE A
HALFWAY HOUSE WITHIN AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED
WITHIN A NB NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS ZONE, AND IDENTIFIED BY
MUNICIPAL ADDRESS 2793 FERNWOOD ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a
public hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 25-050-PC, Open Doors
Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), a request
for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified 2793 Fernwood Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald
Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), had submitted this request, to authorize a Halfway
House within an existing Commercial building located within a NB Neighborhood Business
zone, and identified by municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-
036.000); and

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2025, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after listening to
many neighbors and much discussion among themselves, voted 14-0-0, to recommend approval of
the proposed Conditional Use, to authorize a Halfway House within an existing Commercial
building located within a NB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified by municipal address
2793 Fernwood Road (i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-036.000), having determined that said
project, as presented, has been found to promote the public interest at this location; that said use

has been designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and




welfare will be protected; that said housing unit will not cause substantial injury to other
property(ies) in the neighborhood in which located; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, that having given the Planning Commission's
recommendation full consideration, hereby rejects said recommendation and hereby denies the
r;quested Conditional Use approval, to authorize a Halfway House to be located within an
existing Commercial building situated within a NB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified
by municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road, as related in Case No. 25-050-PC, for Open Doors
Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant) based upon

a determination that

..................................................................................................................




Case No. 25-050-PC
Open Doors Homeless Coalition/Diciples 33
2793 Fernwood Rd
Condiitonal Use Half-Way House in NB

267 RS-10

Harrison County Geographic Information Services




Scheduled for Open Doors Homeless Coalition {owner)
December 18, 2025 Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant)
PC Meeting Case No. 25-050-PC
Conditional Use
Halfway House in a NB
Biloxi
esughedm%
Planning Commission
Case Fact Sheet
Case No.: 25-050-PC
Name of Owner/ Open Doors Homeless Coalition
Applicant: Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33
Address of Property: 2793 Fernwood Road

Tax Parcels/Ward:

1110L-01-036.000/Ward 5

Request:

Purpose of Request:

Size of Property:

Flood Zone:
Present Zoning:
Present Use:

Most Nearly

Bounded By (streets):

Adverse Influences:

Positive Influences:
| etters or
Concerns:

Comments/
Recommendations:

Conditional Use

To consider an application requesting Conditional Use, to
authorize a Halfway House within an existing Commercial
building located within an NB Neighborhood Business
zone, and identified by municipal address 2793 Fernwood

Road.
1.1 acres (more or less)

X
NB-Neighborhood Business

Commercial Building

To the North of Mission Lane; to the South and fronting to
Fernwood Road; to the West of Eisenhower Drive; and fo
the East and adjacent to Debuys Road.

Care must be exercised before granting any Conditional Use
to ensure that the objectwes of City regulations are fully
followed.

The requested Conditional Use will allow the applicant to
establish a Halfway House.

The Planning Division Office has received two lefters in
opposition, concerning this case as of December 11, 2025.

Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner) and Ronald Arant



Open Doors Homeless Coalition (owner)

Ronald Arant on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant)
Case No. 25-0450PC

Conditional Use

Halfway House in a NB

Page 2

Options:

on behalf of Discipleship 33 (applicant), submitted an
application for a Conditiona! Use, to authorize a Halfway
House within an existing Commercial building located within
an NB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified by
municipal address 2793 Fernwocod Road (i.e., Tax Parcel
No. 1110L-01-036.000).

As part of any Conditional Use application review, the
Planning Commission must determine that the Conditional
Use, as proposed, will provide for the public interest at this
location, is compatible with the neighborhood, avoids
adverse impacts on neighbors, maintains safe traffic flow,
protects property values in the neighborhood, and complies
with all relevant city, state and federal laws and regulations.
The applicant/owner is proposing transitional housing to help
people who are transitioning out of homelessness,
incarceration, addiction, or other life crises. There will be
faith-based mentorship and counseling. It will not be used as
a shelter or rehabilitation center, but a structured next step
for committed individuals.

The Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed
this project, and authorized the applicant to make an
application to the Planning Commission and City Council for
Conditional Use approval.

1. Recommend approval of this request for Conditional Use to authorize the
establishment of a Halfway House, situated within NB Neighborhood Business
zone, having determined that the proposed use at this location promotes and
protects the public health, safety, and welfare of the City, that said use will have
no significant negative impact upon the surrounding area, and that said
Conditional Use meets or exceeds all Conditional Use Standards, as prescribed
by the Land Development Ordinance.

2. Recommend denial of the Conditional Use, having determined that said use
does not promote the public interest at this location, and has not been found to
meet all requirements for said use, as outlined in the Standards for Conditional
Use approval contained within the Land Development Ordinance.
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To Be Completed by Owner/Applicant | Date
5me of Rightful Owner(s( Name of Appiicant: (if different fhan Owner)
e Dm(SHom& €45 Coal iten DTSG{‘P\-CSM'P 2 2- A ﬁ+
Property Ad ’ Ward Number
132> -evmvvaodEcl B.loxt, MS 2953 15

Tax Parcel [dentification Number s)

| IO OILHOJTHOT 30V 0] (OO0 ]
DDOC-OO-O00.000 0000 =0

OO0 OO D-DDD.DDD
Mailing Address of Property Owner: oMz ng"Add‘ress of Applicant (if different than
0. Box 471k ~TOWRENT QTS Seawsay Bd Svit AZYE
City: By loxi _ I'Cily: Gt Lot
State: me [ Statér g ¢
Zip: 39535 Zip: 39503
Counly Hauwrison _-County s +ermzon
Telephone:fa§ - 541-I159%S Telephone: (228-392 - H5H T

Property Size (please give in acres or by dimension):” f’rf’,orox I"MO i | £t on laare of land

Present Zoning Classification: NP\
Is the prope_rty [

. West
E rmhowa Cebuys

REQUESTED ACTION BY THE P“[-_ANNING COMMISS!ON (A separate ‘supplement form is

| required for each): v/
! Text Amendment
Zoning Map Amendment — must lnclude zone classification change in narrative
Planned Development
Master Plan/Update
Preliminary Subdivision Review
X | Conditional Use
" | Public ROW Vacation
Street Name Change
Variance
Appeal
Tree Removal

Revised March 2025




(T (Y
GENERAL INFORMATION, READ BEFORE EXECUTING. Attendance by the applicant(s) at
the public hearing is mandatory; however, the applicant may designate a representative to
attend the public hearing on his/her behalf, provided said representative has been properly
designated to speak on the applicant's behalf either by written permission or oral
designation by the applicant at the Public Hearing. If a continuance is to be granted, the
applicant must request same in writing a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of the
scheduled public hearing. The applicant acknowledges that, in signing this application, all
conditions and requirements inherent in the application process have been fully explained
and understood, including the timetable for processing of the application; the applicant has
further received the following appropriate handouts: Application Processing Timetable;
Instructions for Appliication Completion, Procedures for a Conditional Use or Community
Unit Plan; and Variance Procedures. The completed application must be returned to the
Planning Office not later than the first or third Thursday of any month in order that a public
hearing may be held on the first or third Thursday of the following month. Receipt of fee(s)

does not constitute receipt of a completed apphcahon

The Planning Commission (PC) is a recommendation board, all cases will go to
the Biloxi City Council for a final determinationIf any case is denied by the
Biloxi City Council, you will have teh'( 1 0) days to appeal their decision.

 Signature of Righgful Owner

Date

H sray f e
e;;g@ «PﬁY P U@(- 2
Y08 08 106663 Q"-"’
. CARYLED. LENA

Slgnature .o? g;&;ﬁmm A

: .M‘li.m

."T::::f‘::" .$k'... ..’ ‘ :-
Notary Slgn W ’Date Ai':;..j;?: L

{Seal) .-

'Nl-

If someone other than the applicant needs to be notified concermng tﬁi%Rg'a'f p’fgﬁ@e npte name(s)
and address(es) below: . )

NOTES:

NOTE: Please see attached instructions for details on documents required for
a complete application.

Revised March 2025
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g 52t
DATE: (/5 /15*

Conditional Use — The purpose of the Condltlonal Use is to provide for certain uses that, because of
their unique characteristics, can be allowed with special consideration in each case of the impact of
those uses upon neighboring land and of the public need for the particular use at the particular
location. Because of their unigue characteristics, however each of these requires the exercise of
planning judgment on a case-by-case basis.

PLEASE ATTACH A SEPARATE STATEMENT OF SUPPORT - The narrative must set
forth proposed use and justification for the change, utiliZing criteria set forth in Section 23-6- 1(e) of the
Biloxi Code of Ordinances and including all propoesed “and_existing structures as well as the uses
planned for the site in question. Be specific as to*dev*elopmeht proposals, sale of property, or other
transactions/plans proposed or scheduled for preparatzon subje%t to this rezoning request being granted
approval. ke

Detailed Site Plan Attached (If no site plan is attached thIS appl;cation Is considered
incomplete and will not be accepted.) R,
Criteria: m v
1. Is the use necessary to promote the public interest at’ thet location? Yes { No

Piease explain: Amrww_&m f\mv( Use Bor 4 a‘i:ﬂwa.e hotet v’
ux >

?Y) 57?-13';_[ :'h/l 2
[ 3 4
Yes No

3 Will the use causesubstantlai injury:
Neightborhood in which it is located?

Please explain: Tlue ¢ smetstrered use b bl Ta Anwmu decthiee DAY Lrn, |

S U, Suvr—romd-\-\—q pwp.xr-l-u\m ot c.mrma.vn-l-mjazi' la«r*qt. <] + w?!‘f

provide a Sale \m\m\ envir mment o Melivizlnaks who mwghir ptheruy seladic

in which it is to be located, unless other provisions are specifically set forth in

Please explain: —tuss ayprovel o€ Ueed Pl vise. e orditishd ™

WSe Frova owrel-—x NB Zeorong wrmhd covnFotam L et bt

Y\zﬁauiw&m A 3 A stwet T

Revised September 1, 2022

4. Does the use conform toll district regulations of the applicable zoning district |Yes |No AOV %

the requirements governing specific Conditional Uses? S w2 Pl TS



5. Have satisfactory provisions and arrangements been made concerning the following, where

applicable:
Please explain

Conditional Use Supplement

N/A

Yes | No

1. Ingress and egress?

AN

2, Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, with particular
attention to the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the Conditional

Use on adjoining properties and propetties generally in the
zoning district?

3. Refuse and service areas?

5. Screening and buffering, with reference io type d!menssons

3’: !

and character? A

?.

6. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting, with-reference to glare,
traffic safety, economic effect and compatibility and harmonywvzth
properties in the zoning district? &

AN

7. Required yards a d oth

{

Page 2

Revised September 1, 2022




Narralive Proposal for Transitional Living Housing
Submitted to: Biloxi Planning Commission
Submitted by: Discipleship 33 Ministries

Date: 11/5/2025

introduction

Discipleship 33 Ministries respectfully submits this proposal to the Biloxi Planning
Commission requesting approval to operate a transitional living home within the
City of Biloxi. Our goal is to provide a safe, stable, and faith-based environment for
individuals who are transitioning out of homelessness, incarceration, addiction
recovery programs, or other life crises, and who are committed to rebuilding their
lives as productive members of the community. :

Organizational Background

Discipleship 33 Ministries is a nonprofit, faith-based organization founded on the
principle of offering second chances through Christ-centered recovery, mentorship,
and life skills development. Our ministry has served the Gulf Coast community
through outreach, discipleship programs, and partnerships with local churches, law
enforcement, and community organizations.

Cur mission is to empower men and women to overcome barriers to
stability—including substance abuse, unemployment, and lack of housing—by
providing structure, accountability, and holistic support.

Purpose of the Transitional Living Home

The proposed transitional living house will serve as a structured residential program
for adults who are actively pursuing personal transformation. Residents will
participate in a daily schedule that includes:

+ Faith-based mentorship and counseling

- Life skills and job readiness training

» Community service participation

* Recovery support mestings

» Accouniability and case managemant

This program is not a shelter or rehabilitation center but a structured next step for
individuals who have completed initial recovery or crisis programs and are ready io
transition toward independent living. :

Proposed Location and Operations

The proposed home will accommodate up to five residents and one live-in house
managder to ensure 24-hour supervision and support.

» Daily Operations: Residents are required to maintain employment, attend program
activities, and adhere to a curfew and behavioral code of conduct.

« Transportation: Residents will use shared transportation or public transit,
minimizing parking and traffic impact on the surrounding neighborhood.




» Community Standards: The home will maintain cleanliness, quiet hours, and
positive relationships with neighbors. Regular check-ins and program oversight will

ensure accountability and compliance.

Community Benefits

The establishment of this transitional living house will directly contribute to Bifoxi's
broader goals of community safety, rehabilitation, and homelassness reduction by:
» Reducing recidivism and relapse rates through structured support.

+ Providing a pathway from dependency to stabifity.

» Partnering with local employers to build the workforce.

» Relieving strain on emergency shelters, law enforcement, and social services.

Safety and Compliance

Discipleship 33 Ministries is committed to meeting all city codes, zoning
requirements, and safety standards. The property will be maintained in accordance
with all local housing ordinances. Staff will ensure compliance with occupancy
limits, fire safety regulations, and community guidelines. Background checks and
intake assessments will be conducted for all residents to ensure program suitability

and neighborhood safety.

Conclusion

Discipleship 33 Ministries seeks to work in partnership with the City of Biloxi to bring
lasting change to individuals and the community at large. By offering this
transitional living program, we hope to be a bridge between crisis and
stability—transforming lives, strengthening families, and contributing to a healthier,

safer Biloxi.

We appreciate your consideration and look forward to working together to make a
positive impact in our city.

Respectfully submitted,
Rornnis Arant

gy T H . | .
=xacitive Dirscior

Mo inlmakis 2% Vimiots
Discicleship 33 Ministries

(228)-382-4547
rarant@homeofgrace.org
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Community Development Director 676 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Bivd.
Jerry Creel ‘ ~ PO.Box508
Biloxi, Mississippi 39533

Office: 228.435.6280

Fax; 228.435.6188.

¢ ) www.biloxi.ms.us
Biloxi
established 1699
To: Biloxi Ptanning Commission
From: Jerry Creel, Development Review Committee Chair
Date: December 10, 2025
Re: Open Doors Homeless Coalition (Owner)

Discipleship 33 — Ronald Arant (applicant)
2793 Fernwood Road

Parcel: 1110L-01-036.000

DRC Case No. 2025-083

The Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed the above-referenced project
and has authorized the applicant to apply to Planning Commission and Biloxi City Council
for a conditional use allowing a halfway house there.

The DRC will require further review and approval prior to permitting because of the nature
of this project. Building Permits shall be issued when construction documents are approved

by the Building Division.

Yours truly,

Jevey Creel
Jerry Creel, Chair

cc: file




Felicia SerEas |

From: Amy Tabor <amyatabor01@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 10, 2025 7:43 PM

To: Planning

Subject: Call it what you will but asking for a halfway house conditional use

The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious orlgin.

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,

I'm writing y'all today to share my firm opposition to the application for a conditional use permit to establish a halfway
house in the Neighborhood Business zone at 2793 Fernwood Road {tax parcel no. 110L-01-036.000).

While | surely understand and respect the importance of rehabilitation programs in our community, this particular
location just doesn’t fit with the purpose or the planning goals of this district. | have several serious concerns:

« Zoning integrity: The Neighborhood Business designation was created to support and protect commercial activity.
Allowing a non-commercial use like a halfway house would go against the intent of the zoning code and open the door

to other uses that simply don’t belong in this district.

» Economic Impact: The businesses in this area depend on consistent commercial traffic. Bringing in a residential facility
could discourage customers, lower property values, and make future investment less likely — all of which would weaken

the economic health of the district.

« Public Safety and Compatibility: The day-to-day needs of a halfway house — such as supervision, extra traffic, and
possible safety issues — don’t line up with the surrounding business environment. This could affect both employees and

customers who rely on this area being predictable and business-friendly.

« Community Character: The Neighborhood Business zone was carefully planned to encourage commerce, convenience,
and growth. A halfway house doesn’t match those goals and could upset the balance that the city has worked hard to

establish.
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For these reasons, | respectfully ask the Planning Commission to deny the conditional use permit. It's important that we
uphold our zoning laws and protect the strength and vitality of our business community for the fong-term well-being of

our city.

Thank y'all for your time, your thoughtful consideration, and your continued service to our community.

Amy Krohn Tabor

OPPoshop
ECEIVE
DEC 11 2025

BY: ga[)fdb
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Felicia Sereas

From: Cat Bublik <kacoome228@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, December 15, 2025 1244 PM
To: Planning

Subject: Opposition to Case no. 25-050-PC

The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.

| respectfully oppose the establishment of a Halfway House at this location. By definition, a Halfway House in the City of
Biloxi serves individuals on release from custodial confinement or placed in lieu of confinement, which introduces a level
of risk and instability that is not compatible with the surrounding residential environment.

As a resident of this city, 1 am concerned about the broader impacts this facility would have on the neighborhood:
Safety and security concerns: A facility serving individuals transitioning out of confinement increases the likelihood of
disturbances, loitering, and police activity, affecting the overali sense of safety for nearby families.

Negative impact on neighborhood stability: Correctional-related facilities can change how an area is perceived,
discouraging investment and reducing long-term confidence in the neighborhood.

Increased traffic and activity: Staff, volunteers, service providers, and visitors create traffic patterns and noise levels that
are not typical for a residential area.

Incompatibility with residential zoning: A Halfway House is an institutional use placed within a residential setting,
disrupting the predictability and character that zoning is intended to protect.

Loss of quiet enjoyment for nearby residents: Group meetings, outdoor activities, and increased foot traffic diminish the
peaceful environment that residents expect in their homes.

Approving a Halfway House at this location would fundamentally alter the character of the neighborhood and impose
disproportionate burdens on the surrounding community. For these reasons, | respectfully request that the Commission

deny the Conditional Use Permit.

Catherine Bublik
2291 Club Moss Cir, Biloxi, MS 38532

O PAS #1000
ECEIVE
DEC 15 20%5
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Felicia Sereas

From: Jennifer Noble <jenniferanoble918@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, December 12, 2025 549 PM

To: Planning

Subject: Fwd: Objection to Conditional Use Permit - Case #25-050-PC

The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: JNobleCakes <;enmfer@;nobtecakes com>

Date: Tue, Dec 9, 2025 at 8:28 PM

Subject: Objection to Conditional Use Permit — Case #25-050-PC
To: <planning@biloxi.ms.us>

CC: <jenniferanoble918@gmail.com>

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,

I am writing to respectfully oppose the application for a conditional use permit to establish
what the applicant has described as a halfway house (tax parcel 110L-01-036.000 located at
2793 Fernwood Drive) in the Neighborhood Business zone, directly adjacent to my
commercial property (tax parcel 110L-01-035.000 located at 266 DeBuys Road).

After reviewing the organizations involved, it is clear that the applicant and possible venture
does not meet the definition of a halfway house. Instead, the description and operational
model align with a sober living house. This distinction is critical: under the City of Biloxi's
zoning code, sober living houses are classified as social service agencies and are expressly
prohibited in the Neighborhood Business zone.

Allowing this application to move forward under the label of a halfway house would misapply
the zoning ordinance and set a troubling precedent for permitting uses that are explicitly
disallowed. Additionally, any form of a halfway house, sober living center, social services
agency or any similar derivative would negatively impact the economic viability of
surrounding properties. In fact, the various impacts would be considerable:

« Zoning Integrity: The Neighborhood Business zone was created to protect and promote
commercial activity. Introducing a prohibited residential use undermines the intent of the

zoning code and weakens confidence in its enforcement.
» Economic Impact: Businesses in this district rely on consistent commercial traffic. A

proh;blted use could deter customers, reduce property values, and discourage future
ir véstment -
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« Public Safety and Compatibility: The operational needs of a sober living house are not
compatible with surrounding businesses, creating potential conflicts for employees and

patrons.
« Community Character: The Neighborhood Business zone was carefully planned to foster

commerce and accessibility. A sober living house does not align with these goals and risks
disrupting the balance established by city planning.

For these reasons, | respectfully urge the Planning Commission to deny the conditional use
permit. Upholding the zoning code and safeguarding the vitality of our business community is
essential to the long-term health and prosperity of Biloxi.

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration and for your continued service to our
community.

Jennifer Noble, lifelong Biloxi resident (Ward 4)
Owner/Lead Cake Artist

Custom Cakes by Jennifer Noble
formerly Cheeky Monkey Caxe Company
228-220-4985

228-243-3352

jnoblecakes.com

DPPDS! 71[67)
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Felicia Sereas

From: KROHN MANDY <yask17@aol.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 9, 2025 7.04 PM
To: Planning

Subject: Something funny is going on here

The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.

I'm writing to share my concerns about the request for a conditional use permit to put what the applicant calls a
“halfway house” right next to my commercial property in the Neighborhood Business zone.

After looking over the information, it doesn’t seem like what they’re proposing is actually a halfway house. It sounds
much more like a sober living home. That’s an important difference, because sober living homes are not allowed in the
Neighborhood Business zone under the City of Biloxi's zoning rules. They fall under social services, not halfway houses.

If this permit is approved under the wrong label, it not only goes against the zoning rules but could open the door for
other uses that aren’t allowed here. This could cause some real problems:

* Zoning: This area was set up to support businesses. Allowing a residential use that isn’t permitted goes against what

the zoning was created for.
« Business Impact: The businesses here rely on steady customer traffic. A use that isn’t alfowed could hurt property

values and make it harder to attract new businesses.
« Fit for the Area: The way a sober living home operates doesn’t really match the needs of the surrounding businesses

and could create issues for both customers and employees,
« Community Feel: This zone was planned to help local businesses grow. A use like this doesn’t fit with that purpose and
could disrupt the balance the city worked to create.

For these reasons, | respectfully ask the Planning Commission to deny this permit. It’s important that we follow the
zoning rules and protect the business community that helps keep Biloxi strong.

Thank you for your time and for everything you do for our community.
Mandy Krohn

6311 Herbie Rd

Biloxi, MS

39532

Oftostion
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Felicia Sereas

From: christopher noble <chrisnoble405@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 9, 2025 8:29 PM

To: Planning

Subject: Objection to Conditional Use Permit — Case #25-050-PC

The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.

Dear Planning Commission Members,

I am writing to formally object to the proposed Conditional Use permit that seeks to authorize the establishment of a
“Halfway House,” as outlined in the commission's agenda, within an existing commercial building at 2793 Fernwood
Road, Biloxi(i.e., Tax Parcel No. 1110L-01-036.000). This property is situated in an NB Neighborhood Business Zone and is

located next to my commercial property.

Upon review of entities involved, it is clear that the proposed facility does not align with the definition of a “Halfway
House” as outlined in the City of Biloxi’s Land Development Ordinance (LDO). A "Halfway House" under Article 23-10 of
the LDO is defined as a facility for individuals transitioning from custodial confinement under court order, not for
individuals entering a substance or alcohol treatment facility. In fact, the facility described in the application more
closely resembles a social services organization rather than a facility meeting the definition of a “Halfway House.”

According to the applicant’s own website (www.disdepship33.org/rules), Discipleship 33 operates like a social service
agency, imposing strict requirements on participants, including mandatory sobriety, three (3) weekly attendances at
Alcoholics/Narcotics Anonymous meetings, program fees, drug and alcohol testing fees, rent payments, and more. The
facility also requires a House Manager on-site to oversee the distribution of all medications, including over-the-counter
ones, to prevent theft and abuse by residents, further underscoring that the facility’s operations do not align with the
definition of a “Halfway House” under the LDO. See definition of Social Service Agency in the LDO under Article 23-10

also.

Additionally, the co-applicant, Open Doors Homeless Coalition, has demonstrated non-compliance with city regulations.
This organization has current violations of code enforcement laws, failed to respond to complaints, and was granted a
30-day extension by Councilman Tisdale to resolve the issue—an extension that was predicated on the hope of
establishing communication, which has yet to occur. This history of non-compliance raises concerns about the
applicant’s ability to be a responsible community partner.

For these reasons, | oppose the granting of this Conditional Use permit. Allowing such a facility, in contrast to the LDO in
this location would be inconsistent with the character of the surrounding area, which is primarily comprised of
businesses engaged in retail sales and commercial services. 1t is likely that this facility would deter potential customers
and negatively impact property values, hindering future growth and development in the area. Furthermore, the
proposed facility does not align with the needs or interests of the nearby businesses and residents, who are unlikely to
be the target clientele for a drug and alcohol treatment or sober living facility.

| respectfully urge the planning commission to uphold the zoning regulations for the area, protect the interests of

existing property owners, and prevent the imposition of undue burdens on nearby properties and public safety services.
Additionally, I ask that the commission adhere to the definitions and guidelines established in the current edition of the

City of Biloxi's Land Development Ordinance.
ECEIVE

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. DE 1
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Sincerely,
Christopher Noble
Biloxi Resident
228-669-3688
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OPEN
DOORS

mey | HOMELESS
/ | COALON

December 22, 2025

City of Biloxi - Community Development
ATTN: Mr. Jerry Creel

676 Dr Martin Luther King Jr Blvd,
Biloxi, MS 39530

Re: Open Doors/Discipleship 33 CUP Case for City Council
Dear Mr. Creel:

Thank you and the Biloxi Planning Commission for hearing our Conditional Use Permit case on
December 18, 2025 and for the unanimous recommendation to the Biloxi City Council. As is the
usual protocol, I imagine the case would be heard by the City Council at the next scheduled
meeting, which would fall on January 6, 2026. The primary applicant for the CUP is Mr. Ronnie
Arant with Discipleship 33, who will be out of the country on that date.

We respectfully ask that the CUP be considered by the Council on the following Council date of
January 20, 2026.

Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions or concerns. I may be reached at 228-205-
7047 or 228-547-1585 (cell) or by email at dwittmann@@opendoorshc.org.

Sincerely,
@MM Uzt )

Dena Wittmann, Ph.D.
Executive Director
Open Doors Homeless Coalition

11975 Seaway Road, Suite B-240, Gulfport, MS 39503
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BILOXI PLANNING COMMISSICH MEETING
CECEMBER 18, 2025
COMMRIITY CEVELORMENT,

[R. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
676 CR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD,
BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI,

BEGINNING AT 2:00 P.M.

PLANNING COMMISSICH MEMBERS PRESENT:

Charlie Dellenger, Chairman
Ronnie Begard
Kyle Carron
Steve Delahcusey
Dr. larry Drawdy
Joe King

Gary Lechner
Debora Magee
Rugust Parker
Jimmy Poulos
Shante' Shaw
John Snow

David Stanovich
Michael Todaro

ALSO PRESENT:
Jerry Creel, Director of Community Development
Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner
Caryle Lena, Planner I

REPCRTED BY:

Simpson Burdine & Migues

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

C-O-N-T-E-N-T-S
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING(S) : PAGE:
25-046-EC , 5

NEW PUBLIC HEARTNG(S) :
25-047-EC 11
25-048-EC 33

TREE HEARING (S) :

(None) e

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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CHATIRMAN DELLENGER:

Call the Planning Commission meeting to
order,

Record the mernbers present.
Mr. Lechner, Mr. Parker, Mr. Tcdaro, Ms. Magee,
Ms. Shaw, Mr. Stanovich, Mr. Begard,
Mr. Delzhousey, Dr. Drawdy, Mr. Carron, Mr. King,
Mr. Snow, Mr. Poulos; myself, Dr. Cellenger.

We also have Felicia Serpas, Senior
Planner; Jerry Creel, Director of Community
Development; Caryle Lena, Planner. I don't see
any councilmen in the audience. B2nd Melissa
Rodolfich, court reporter.

Steve, if you would, please lead us in a
prayer.
MR. DELARHCUSEY:

Yes,

(Moment of prayer.)
CHATRMEN DELLENGER:

Mr, Poulos, will you lead us in the
pledge, please?

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIRMAN DELIENGER:

I would like to welccme everyorne to the

Planning Commission meeting and remind you that if

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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yoﬁ core up to speak that you please write your
name and address in the book and state your name
and address for the record.

Please silence all your cell phones.
And we are going to have a time of four minutes
when you come up and sgeak, so please ke

respectful if your four minutes is up that you

. don't keep going and take up everybcdy else's

ras f2a & cnatice o

EVETrJCLE
the Planning Ceamission minutes frem the last
meeting, can I have a motion?
MR. DELRHCUSEY:

Move to approve motion.
MR, PCULOS:

Second.
CHAIRMEN DELLENGER:

Motion by Mr. Celahousey; second by
Mr. Poulos.

211 those in favor, please signify by
raising your hand.

(Unanimous vote.)
CHATRMAN CELLENGER:

Rll cpposed?

(None opposed.)

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130
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Okay. Thank you, Jerry.
MR. FOUNTAIN:

And then I wanted to address the
gentleman's comments that he came up to discuss.
Mr. Jerry covered the easement question.

But as far as the flood zcne is
concerned, there is a small flocd zone area in the
southeast corner of the property, but the property
will be required to be develcped in accordance
with floed zone requirements.

And also, he was really asking about
floeding in general and I don't know if he knows
this, but I will just explain it for the crowd.
We will ke requirsd to perform a pre- and
post-development hundred-year drainage analysis,
which will ensure no drainage leaves the site
post—develorment versus pre-development. So in a
technical standpoint, there shouldn't ke any more
flooding there after the fact than there was
before the fact.

CHAIRMEN DELIENGER:

Okay. Thank you.
MR. FOUNTAIN:

Bny other questions?

CHAIRMEN DELLENGER:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388.3130
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No other questions.
MR. ECUNTAIN:

Thank you all.
MR. CREEL:

Well, the issue before you tccday is to
approve this subdivision preliminary plat. The
question before you is, have they designed it to

ccrply with the subdivision reguirements for a

approved subject to your approval today, and the
road width, the lot widths -- you know, the lots
are almost double what's required by RS-7.5.

If thers are concerns abcut changes
keing made to this, if there are changes made to
the lot size or whatever, it would have to cocme
back and go back through the DRC and the Planning
Commissicn again.

So based on -- based on our review at
CRC, the subdivision does meet all the
requirerents of RS-7.5. Staff has no objection
and would recommend approval.

MR. TODARO:

Move to acprove.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR. PARKER:

Secord.
CHATRMAN CELLENGER:

Moticn by Mr. Todarc to approve;
seconded by Mr. Parker.

Is there any discussien?

There teing no discussion, please vote
by raising your hands, please. Mr. Iechner,

Mr. Parker, Mr. Todaro, Ms. Magee, Ms. Shaw,
Mr. Stanevich, Mr. Bogard, Mr. Delahousey,

Dr. Drawdy, Mr. Carron, Mr. King, Mr. Snow,

Mr. Poulos; and myself, Mr, Dellenger. Let the
record show that's unanimous.

Next case we have is Case Number
25-030-2C, Cpen Doors Homeless Coalition, cwner,
and Ronald RArant on behalf of Discipleship 33, the
applicant, which is a request for conditional use
approval to authorize a halfway house within an
existing comrercial building located in an NB,
Neighborhood Business, zone, identified by
municipal address 2793 Fernwood Road, Tax Parcel
Nurkber 1110L-01-036.00., This was advertised on
12/5 and 12/12.

Felicia, do you have the video, please?

MS. SERPAS:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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That's Cebuys Road. Ckay.
CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

Thank you.

Is Mr. Arant or their representative
here to present or frcm the Cealition?

Please state your nare and address for
the record.

MS. WITTMAMNN:

address of our businsss.

I'm the executive director of Cpen Dcors
Homeless Coaliticn. We have owned this property
since 2021, and we have operated our business out
of it. At least part of cur staff were lccated
there, nine staff mexters there from 2021 until
Rugust of 2025 at which time, in order to reduce
costs, we moved our staff members back to the
Knight Neonprofit Center.

We were considering listing the
property. Not quite sure what we were going to do
with it at that point, but we were having a
discussion with our colleagues at Discipleship 33
about the property and we discussed potentially

creating a transitional living facility as they

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388 3130
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cperate in Jackson County and bringing those
services to the citizens of Biloxi.

In the work that we do across the lower
six counties, Biloxi is one of the hardest places
for us to leccate affordable housing for those who
have been experiencing homelessness, who have been
released from jail, who are suffering from,
recovering from addiction, and so we thought it
was a perfect opportunity to put our heads
toegethar and create a project that would meet the
needs of our citizens of Biloxi that we work with.

And so I'll pass it over to Mr. Arant
whe can tell you sore details about the project.
MR. RRENT:

Yos. 8o good afterncon. So my name is
Ronniz Arant. I'm the exscutive director of
Discipleship 33. I'm also the program directer
for the Home of Gracs.

To tell you a little bit abont what
wa're trying to do is ~- 50 we are established, I
have four preperties in the Jackson County area
already. These aren't individuals -- somstimes
when pecple think about the transiticral living,
they talk abcut coming straight out of prison and

we're taking pecple off the sirest. Thess are

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.3883130
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individuals that have went through a long-term
Tecovery program such &3 the Heors of Grace or
sermething like the Home of Grace,

In the Jackson County ares, you know, we
hawve -- in fwo years, we haven't had ones incident
with the police, anyone called. Thess are
individuals -~ we have men ard weman houses in

Jackson County. This will be a men's house in

they need
workers, they call me because these men and woren,
you know, they transition into scciety after
long~-ferm recovery.

Wa are 100 percent Christ-centerad.
That keing said, we offer direct services such as
licensed cutpatient counsaling, They go to
different groups and different things like that.

These are not just pecple that's just
going to ke living in the house deing nothing.
They're going to be in the workforce in Bilowi,
It can actually ke an asset to the City of Biloxi.

Also, too, we have 24/7 staff, a live-in
houseran that will ke living on the progerty.

We do background checks, so, again, like

Simpsen Burdine & Migues 2283883130

Wom sy o WM

[ R Y S S P
L= O £ S N S TR

19

LR A T L7 % B e

W

35

I said, we're not putting any kind of violent
offerders -~ sex offenders or anything like that
will not be in the residence.

I know there have been sore concerns
over traffic issues, You can see at the property,
there is an ll-space parking lot and two handicap
on the other side. There's only going to ke five
individuals, at most, living at the house at ore
time. I don't see this creating much eof a traffic
issue,

Also, we will have rardem drug testing.
There will be direct oversight by myself, and
again, vou kncw, I have a proven track record.

If there is any guestions or anything I
can answer, I would love to.

MR, DELAHOUSEY:

I have got a couple of questions.

I have done sors research on what you're
preposing here, and please allow me to go through
a couple of points here and you comment on if you
approve.

MR, BARRENT:
Yes, sir.
MR. EELABECUSEY:
¥y research has indicated that efforts

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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like you'ra doing hers, Nurkber 1, reduces
re-offendsrs, a lot of people having teen previous
cfferders and it recuces re-offenders.

Nurker 2, accountability and supgort,
you know where the people are, so thet seems like
a good thing.

Nirrber 3, it's cost eifectiva, in that,

I essume they mean that it's cheager than

And the fourth thing is it affords
coqmunity re-integration by helping pecple relsarn
everyday responsibilities, so I'm sure you've had
way more exgerience than I have had with this.

Would you like to cemmsat on any of
those or add to or --

MR, BRANT:

Yes, sir. BArd just to tell you a little
bit of a back story, so that's how it all core
abcout, Like T said, I've heen the program
director for the Here of CGrace and I've keen with
the Heme of Gracs for over 10 years, and Homs of
Grace is & great foundation. BAny long-time
recovery support is. But what happens next, you

know? Wnen people go back to the same

Simpsen Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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envirorments and the same situaticn, they'il more
likely re-offend, relapse and all different things
like this,

Coming in to a structured environment --
and, teco, there is sober living houses in Biloxi
now, you know, with no structure, no sancticns,
anything like this. This is a structured
envirommant in every senss, Like I said, there is
outpatient counseling., It is 100 percent
Christ-cantered, as well as there is going to be
tons of accountability with live-in staff, as well
as myself with direct oversight with these
individuals.

Angd in the twe years, I would say
15 percent of all participents have not only
corpleted the program but went on to ke -— have a
permanent residence, have permanent exployment and
also pay taxes in Jecksen Ceunty, you know,
because they -~ you know, whatever they set up,
they can ke with us for six months to two years.
Within that time frame, they build lives within
these communities, So where do thay go back to?
Wrers do they pay tawxes to? Those communities.
MR, DELREOUSEY:

Thankx you.

WM oy 1 e W Ry
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of six months, I feal like, you know, after going
to leng-term recovery -- long-term recovery is
any~here from three menths te six menths. The
next step would be six months in transitional
living.

But scire individuals, you know, they
come with nothing. They have to save up money and
build things, so we cut it off af two years
because I feel like after two years, if scmeone
isn't progressing at that peint, we nesd to find
somathing else for them.

ER. [RRNDY:

How would this proposed halfway house ke
in coordinmation with the Gulf Ceast Rescue Mission
that's right dewn the road?

MR. ARBNT!

%0 we wouldn't have any affiliation with
them.

DR, LRAWDY:

I understand that, but they house
pecple. They house men just like you're talking
about, and they can house many more than what
you're talking akeout, And would this be any
cempetition with them?

MR. ARANT:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130
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MR, TCLARO:
My, Brant, they have alveady graduated

frem the Here of Grace pregram ard this is the

Yes, sir.
MR, TODARO:

And there is five residents -- or roem

MR. TODRRO:

As an average or & guess, how leng would
they ke there before they're actually to the next
step?

MR, ARERNT:

Till they get their own place?
MR, TCDARD:

Tes.
MR, RRANT:

So we ~- it varies.
MR. TODERO:

Just a bkell park?
MR, RRANT:

We range -- yes, sir. 8o it's a minimn

mos W

@ - >

Yo, sir. You know, in the Jackson
County arsa right now -- this is cne reason why
we're trying to expand into Harriseon County,
Biloxi -- T have a waiting list right now. Like I
said, I have four residents and most of my pecple
core from the Home of Grace. I have relationships

=

with treatment places all over the State of

would this te en the tax rolls in any way, Jorry?
MR. CREZL:

Are y'all tz2x exerpt? Are y'sll
considered tax exerpi?
tR. ARANT:

Yes. We're a nonprofit.
MR. CRIEL:

You're ronprofit. Ckay.
CR. [RRADY:

%o they would not, ricght?
M3, WITTHMRIR::

And Cpen Doors Homeless Cealition is the
cwmer and so we're a ronprofit as well,
TR. CRANDY:

Okay,

Simpson Burdine & M:igues 228.388 3130
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HR. TCCARO:

Mr. Brant, I would like to just clarify.
So you'll have five residents there for, at the
rost, two years?

MR. ARANT:
. Yes, sir.
MR. TOMRRO:

Ard there won't ke like hang-zround
pecple? I'm sure that may ke a concern for the
neighbors.

MR. ARRNT:

What deo you mean “hang-arcurd pecple"?
MR, TCDARO:

Bs sore missions whore --

CHAIRMAN EELIENGER:

Pecple harging arocund.
MR. BRANT:

Ch, no, sir.

MR, TOCARC:

S0 you're geing to have psople who are
iliving there, and your goal is to get them jcbs
and moving on?

MR. ARANT:

Yazs, sir.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

Five residents?
¥R, ERANT:

rive residents. 2And no one is -- they
are not allewed visitors to the house. That's a
good question., I'm glad you brought that up.

Frcm time to time, if they have kids -~
one of the things that we're big hellewvers in is

rastoring ralationships with their kids, so we do

nigger house than it lcoks. That thing gces back.

Tnere's prokably -- like an areza for their kids to
ccme stay the night, different stuff like that.

But outside of -- having guests or
scmebedy that can just shew up and say, hey, I
need & rocm, ne, Sir.
MR. TCLARO:

So y'all will definitely control as to
who's in and who's visiting, family merbers?
¥R, RRANT:

Yes, sir.

Ard you have to complete a long-term
recovery program to even be considersd to be
accepted in here, and that's the difference in,

sir, I think the place you're talking about, the

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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rescue mission, is we're not just taking pecple
off the street, They have to actually go through
another program before they coma to us, such as
the Hore —-

CR. DRANTY:

Another question, then. Would there ka
a head resident there or a persen that lives there
with them all the time?

MR, BRANT:

Yes, sir. 24/7, we will have a peer
support specialist, I don't know if vou're
familiar with that, but that’s kind of like a peer
sugpport, scisone that has been trained in helping
residents and stuff like that,

LCR. CRAENDY:

Sc there would ke there -- sareone there
24 hours a day?

MR. RRANT:

Yes, sir, and we already have a security
system in place. There is cameras all over the
progerty, stuff like that.

MR, CARECN:

Okay. That answered one of my questions

as far as having somecne there 24/7.

You show where you have five bedrocms,

Simpsen Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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80 are you going to have a bedrcom for that
parsen?
MR. ARANT:

That would count as one of the fivs,
¥R, CRRRON:

Ckav. Eo are you going fo limit it to
four residents?

MR, BRANT:

Ard just so you know, all of my houses

now, Jjust the way it's worksd out, is people that
actually currently work for the Home of Grace.
They're alsc a peer sucgort sgeciaslist for the
Home of Grace.
*R. CRRRCU:

So yeu'll actwally only have four psople

thers that are deing the pregram?

Iss

MR. ARARNT:

Yes, sir.
MR. CARRCH:

Al right. Thank you.
MS. WITTHAMN:

Mr, Tedaro, you had a question about
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hanging arcund.
MR. TCCARO:

Right. I'm sure that may ke a concern
by neighbors and I'm just sgeaking to that.
M5, WITTMAMN:

Right, In any neighborhced, I think
that would be & concern. But one of the things
that -- when we were discussing this that was
really important for this prcperty is that it's
rignt there c¢n a bus line, and so it is -- a
requirerent, from what I urderstand, for his other
transitional living houses is erplowirent,

And so most of them do niot have
vehicles, as they're coming cut of long-term
recovery, and so teing on this bus lire would
facilitate getting to and from work. There are
also a lot of nearby businesses where they could
secure employrent. So that was another benefit to
not beirng out in the country screwhere, for
instance.

DR, LREADY:

Another guestion, please. In the ewvent
that a persen is in hers -- and you said & minimm
of six sonths. Em I correct?

MR, RBRANT:
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Yes, sir.
DR. DRAEADY:

211 right, Waat happens to the person
if they don't cerplete the pregram? Say, they
have a prcblem arnd they're in their fourth month,
what haggens to them?

MR, RRANT:

weone is with us and they have

the other i programs that will give them

the opticns ard try to gst them help in that way.
If not, then they will, you kncw, ke escortsd off
the prezerty and out of Bilexi and wherever they
cheose to go after that.

But ¥ have not had that in two years
haggen in Jackson County. I'm not going to say --
wa've had a couple of issues where people, you
knew, did relapse, but zll of them have agresd to
go back to the Heowe of Grace inpatient program.
ER. L[RENDY:

So you -- all righnt. I'm going to
repeat the question. I'm not picking at it. I
just want to make sure I clearly urderstand what

wa'ra talking zbout.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228388 3130
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if a person dessn't complete the program
and they -- like this, then you just issue them
out and they would go scmeplace else?

MR. BRANT:

Yas, sir. So if scmaone -- typically in
transiticnal liwving, if screone deesn't complete
that, it's because they're readv to move out and
find their own place, They can choose to do that
at any time.

But if there is an issue, you know,
let's say, with breaking the rules or something
like that, they will be offered the opportunity to
go to an inpatient progrem that we will help them
get in to, If they don't choose to do that, then
their family or scmeone would have to pick them up
and they would have to go somewhere else cut of
the residence.

MR. STANOVICH:

Okay. A couple of questions. Did you
say none of those pecple are coming directly from
prison?

MR. BRANT:

Wo, sir. Ewven if they cocme -- if

they're in prizon, they weuld have to ccoplets an

inpatient long-term program kefore they comse to

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388 3130
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us.
MR, STANCVICH:

Pzople that do that program, are these
vioclent offenders?
MR. ARANMT:

No, sir. So I'm glad you asked that one
teo. S0 background checks, so we will rot be

coepting vielant offenders or sex offenders,

o™

Most of these pecple will ke cening from
the Heme of Grace or Pascagouls or Jacksen County?
MR, RRANT:

The gajority. Yes, sir, the majority.
WR, STANQVICH:

So directly, this is not really helping
the homeless situation that we have in Biloxi,
corract?

M3, WITIMRD:

And that's a really important question,
and so that's somathing we have discussed a lot.
¥hat we want to ensure with this particular
proparty is that the cnes that would ke the

residents have caae from the City of Biloxi. They
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are people that, through our cutreach efforts --
we have extensive outreach with Biloxi Police
Department and with Mebile Crisis. And when we
identify persons who -~ our partnership is
longstarding kecause when we identify persons who
are experiencing hemelessness here in the City of
Biloxi ard they sre willing -- they are in active
addictien and they are willing to go through
treatment, we connect them with a variety ~- we
have had quite a few businesspersons create a fund
to pay for scae of these beds at Heme of Grace.

S0 wie get them connected. They go
through treatment at Hoare of Grace, and then the
issue is if they're from Biloxi, we have nowhere
to house them after completion of that pregram
back in the city where they carme from.

MA. STAROVICH:

Thank you, Could you t=ll us a little
bit more about your organization? I'm not
familiar with it.

MS. WITT-ANM:

Qn, well, certainly,
MR, STANGVICH:

Just & short version.

MR, BRANT:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3833130
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I would like to speak on this too.
M5, WITTMRN:

Okay. %o we have besn a norprolfit sinca
2005, Wa'we actuzlly been around since 2001.
We -~ Cpen Coors Hemeless Cealiticn is -- I'm

going to say a whole bunch of words and I'm trying

to tell you what they mean, tut we're the

gecgrarhy 1s <he lower six counties of the State
of Mississippl. 8So we apply for all of the HUD
funds that core to our gecgraphic area,

wnen 1 say all those words, that means
e apply for them. We hold the data for all of
the agencies that are funded through our
continum, ard that's quite a few that I'm sure
you are familiar with: Center for Nonviolencae,
Back Bay Mission, Community Care Network, Mental
Health Asscciation of South Mississippi, et
cetera, 20 a lot of work we do is behind the
scenes and creating the conditions.
MR. STANOVICH:

Most of your funding is federal funding.

MG, WITTHENN:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388 3130
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We have a good mix of faderal funding
and state funding. We have funding through the
State of Mississippi directly from the Legislature
that gees to Mississippl Home Corp for us to
provide housing for pecple with sericus mental
illress and who have state psychiatric hospital --
a pericd of tire where they do that. Ve provide
housing.

if they are experiencing homelessness
with a serious mental illness or a co-occurring
disorder, we are able to connect with mental
health treatment and/or substance abuse treatment
ard then house them in their ¢wn permanent housing
after cozpletion of thoss programs.

MR. STANOVICH:

So your organizatien has worked with his

organization for quite a while?
M3, WITTHAMIT:

Pbsolutely. ¥e have Ms in place.
VR. STANOVICH:

A couple of last questions and I will be
done, Are the majority of your people that are
staying there just drug, alcorcl problems? Is
that it?

HR. ARANT:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.3883130
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Yes, sir, Mental illness, as well.
Like, you know, drug end alcchol acddictien is
considered mental illness.

But can I speak real quick about your
question? 8o directly, my point I'm tryving to get
across apout this is we're not tsking scmecne
right off the street, Wnat we have, Hore of Gracs

has four beds that we have dedicated to Cren

th

from them off the street and go threugh treatmenc,
then thay're eligible to ceme to our house,
Discipleship 33.

20 it will ke affecting -- 1t will ke
helping the homaless pepulation in Biloxi, It
just won't ke right away because, again, we don’t
take in -~ in my opinion, taking scmeone straight
off the street and throwing them in a houss,
that's not the answer. I mean, that's not going
to work, We're qoing to get them the help they
nezad and then put them in the house.

MR, STANCVICH:

Last question., All these cccupants,

will they be expected to have -- seek some type of

exploymant?
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MR, BRANT:

Yes, sir. That is a requiregent. If
they -~ so that's ore of the things -- we talked
about rules. T run a real structured environment,
50 drugs ard alceonol isn't the crly thing. You
have a certain amount of time, If you don't find
a job within the first few weeks, then we find you
sorgwhere else to go because that's not what we're
apcut,

You know, in the Bible it talks about
work, and that's what we're trying to do, is not
only get these individuals off the drugs but
create them into, you know, viable citizens, you
kacw what I mean, giving then employrent and stuff
that like,

Typically, just on average, I haven't
had anyone in any of the houses that I currently
crarate that had a problem that hadn't feound
erployrent within the first two fo three weeks,

Brd right now -- I'm sure y'all are all
aware -- if semrabedy wants to work, there is a job
cut thera. It might rot ke one you want, kut
there is plenty of jobs out there. B&and, again,
that's why certain erployers call me because I

have irdividuals that are willing -- they're just
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lecoking for a job.
MR. STROVICH:

Thank you.
MR, CARROMN:

To they pay sare form of rent?

MR, RRANT:
Yes, sir, So they pay 5130 z week.
Negw, we do -— I do have a 1ot of supps

might taxe a couple of waeks Lo get a jeb. They
will help them until they get a job. But within
the first ccouple of weeks, thay are paying rent,
8150 a week.
MR, CARRGN:

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Eny other questions?

{Ho response.}
CFAIRMAN [ELIENCGER:

Ckay. Thank you.

Is there anycne in the auvdience to sceak
in favor of the applicant's regquest? Anyens
sreaking in favor?

MR, LINRMBERIER:
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The City calls me Pickleball Tom.
CHATRMAEH DELLENGER:

What's your zddress, Picklepall Tom?
FR. LINENBERGER:

I live at 2584 Rue Palafox in Biloxi,
Ward 5.

I have had a lot of experience with
these guys, not one of the patients, but I also
have & lot of experience with the V&, The VA
has -- we have six other transitional houses here
in the City of Biloxi. Two of them are up in the
Sunkist area. OCne is off of Rodenberg and arother
is on the Alicia Street., I don't know the other
two. They are for both woemen and nen and it's
very similar. They come out of treatment. Most
of them are mental health because of PTSD or drug
and alcohol, but it's lkeen wery successful. And I
would like you to approve it.

CHATRMEN DELIENGER:
Thank you.
Anyone else to speak in favor?
Mr. Lyons.
MR. LYCNS:
Barry Lyons, formerly at 642 Hopkins

Beulevard, but I'm here on kehalf of Discipleship

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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33 as a beard mexber and also as a graduate and
forrsr beard penbar of the Heme of Grace.

I know firsthard all of the good that
goes on through this amazing ministry called the
Herme of Grace. Arnd Ronnie has baen the director
for 10 years. Lecal guy from Billoxi. Parents are

good Biloxi people that I grew up with. I didn't

knew that until just a little while &go. But

Erd thess hores that we're here o -~ or
this particular home, everything they've told you
I certainly vouch for, snd these geople are --
have gone through a 90-day or longer program
tefore they ever get to this heouse, So,
cbvigpusly, there is no gusrantess in life, but I
just feel like this would be a great cgportunity,
the house and the setup of the house.

And being in Biloxi —- they'we certainly
rot saturated Jackson County, but the goal of Heme
of Grace, we want to reach as many pecple as we
can all over the country, and I've keen an
advecate for them, and personally, you all know
some of the people that I have helped get into

that program. $o, you know, this is a very worthy

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130




R - T R % R U

L S I N I T = S ™ RSN VI
[E O RN e IS T N A G ol o

[TL

o

w0 -] o,y o

-
-

77

project and I hope he gets acproved. Thank you.
CHATRMAN [EETFNGER:

Thank you.

Is there anyone else to speak in favor?
M3, KING:

I will ke brief. My narme is Charlotte
Sidaway King, I'm a former chairman of the board
for Ocen Coors Hemeless Coalition, and just in my
term ~- it was almost eight, ten years® tenure
with the beard -~ one of the biggest things that
we had with the transiticnal housing — berause as
y'all can all see, we know the problem is there.
We see it, but horelessness is just not a
broad-brush selution, Otherwise, ws wouldn't be
dealing with it for muitiple generations.

But the biggest thing that we have
learned is the customization and really working
with those irdividuals ard the ones that we have
seen that get committed and go through the
treatments like the Heome of Grace -- and there is
other ores out there —- they just need a chance.
Being able to give them an ability to step up in a
community that has rallied bkehind them to help
ensure that all the lives in cur city can ke as

test off as possible is huge. And not having the

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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housing, especially for this niche of citizens, is
extrerely important, so I do hope everybody will
consider that as y'all dscide to move forward.
Thank you.
CHATRMEN DELLIENGER:

Okay. 2Anyone else to speak in favor?
Anyane in faver?

{¥o resconse.)

cppesivion?

If you can, just state your name and
address, plesse.
R, MCCERTY:

Kerdrick McCerty. I cwn the lot, 27%,
right across the strest on Debuys,

I don't think it's a questicn whether or
not it's & geod program. That's not the question.
The question is the proximity to all the
vusinesses around it.

If you show that screen again with that
video, you know, right across that big area that
used to ke the skate park is now slated to keccme
a recreational center for ycuth programming. You

kncwW, that's coming up. That's Harrison County's.
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Actually, right next to that is my lot,
which I'm planning on next week breaking ground on
my million-dollar health clinic, Right next to
that is Will's Way, okay, which is a facility that
specializes in children with psychiatric and
behavioral problems.

20 ¥ den't think it's —- the halfway
here is a great program and I'm sure it's very
effective, Nothlng against them. The prozimity,
the location is the problem that T have. It's not
suited for where it is located for what
developrant is happening in that area.

If you drive down Dekuys, thers are
hundreds of million of dollars being filtered into
Debuys right now with the Marriott, with the Great
Southern project, with the big gas station, the
rewnhcges.  It's moving more north. And over the
rallroad tracks, we're starting to ¥ind of see the
development happen in a gocd way.

Nothing against the halfway heme. T
hope the best for them., I just don't like the
location.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank vou.

Anyene else in cgposition?

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR, NCRBLE:

Christopher Ncble, 2304 Merry lzne,
Biloxi,

The -- I den't ses anyone having a
proeblem with what Discipleship 33 can accomplish
ard what they've been acccrplishing.

The problem is the area and that

Tmat they told you teday, you can

£or a neighoorhccod pusiness rons.
calling curselves a halfway hcuse or anything
else, they guarantesd -~ they mest the definition
of sccial services agency by their own website
description, how they filed with the Secretary of
State's office, their NAICS cedes. They're a2
sccial services organization, and it's just not
alleowed in a neignborhood zone.

As far as the co-applicant, Cpen Doors
Horeless Cealition, again, they've done great
work, but recently trey fourd themselves in front
of City Council for cede enforcement hearings,
which they didn't show up for. Paul Tisdale, the
councilman there, offered a 30-day extension for

them to sse it if he could get in touch with them
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In addition to all that, the
nencorpatibility with the surrounding area, safety
concerns of all the other nearby preperty owners,
the reduced economic concerns of retail sales and
the properiy value reductions, I urge you to
follow the Larnd Develorment Ordinance, which is
our land develcpment law.

CHATRMAN LELLENGER:

Thank you,

Anyore else in epposition?
¥RS. NCBLE:

Hi. I'm Jennifer Noble. I live at 2304
Merry Read, Biloxi, but I own the property at 266
Debuys Road, which is adjzcent to that progerty on
two sides. They envelop me on two sides.

I respectfully opposs the establishment
of a halfway house at this location due to the
direct and significant impacts it would have on my
adjacent progerty. A halfway house, by
definition, houses individuals on release from
custedial confinerent or placed in lieu of
confinerent, which introduces a level of risk ard
instability that is incompatible with the

surrourding envircrrent.
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The presence of this facility next deor
would regatively affect my pregerty in several
ways: Eafety and security concarns, Facilities
serving individuzls transiticning cut of
confinerent incresses the likelihced of
disturtences, loitering and police activity.

Reduced property valus, Real estate

Increasaed trafiic and activity with

staff, volunteers and service providers,

Incerpatibility with existing use. B
nalfway house is an institutional use placed
directly beside private progerty. This disrupts
the stability and predictability that zoning is
designed to protect.

Loss of privacy and quist enjoyment.
Cutdoor pregramming, growp mestings and increased
foot traffic diminish the privacy and peaceful use
of my prozerty.

Approving & halfway house at this
lecation would furdamentally alter the character

of the neighbornecd and impose a disproporticnate
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kurden on the adjacent procerty owners.

Additionally, the program described by’
the agplicant dees not meet the City of Biloxi's
cdefinitien of & halfway heuse, which is
spaecifically limited to licensed homes for
individuals on release frem custodial confinemsnt
or placed in lieu of confinement.

The applicant has stated that this will
te a transitional living heme program for adults
voluntarily pursuing perscnal transformation, with
services including faith-based mentorship,
counseling, life skills training, job readiness
program, community service, recovery meetings and
case managerant., These activities clearly align
with the City's definition of a social services
agency and not that of a halfway house.

E social services agency is not
permitted at this location. Reclassifying this
program as & halfway house would undermine the
integrity of the zoning cocde and set a harmful
precedant for future misclassifications.

Rod for these reascns, I respsctfully
request that the Commission deny the conditional
use germit. Thank you.

CHRIRMEY CELLENGER:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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Anyene else to speak in opposition?

Yes, sir. Come up and state your name
and address.
MR, MAERKOWVITS:

My name is Rod Markovits, I live at
2668 Beach Boulevard, Biloxi. T cwm preperty that
is adjacent to that at 2782 Fermwcod Read.

And I do want to thanX the Comrdssicn

Like, when you follcow thess other thres

pecple shead of me, T don't have to say the same
thing, so I save my tire, but I concur with
everything they have sald,

Wnen I bought that property in Bugust of
"23, I spent a lot of money to improve it because
of the ccmmercial zoning and what was intended for
it to bs.

Bs the gentleman saild earlier, there is
a lot of investment going dewm that little read
from the corner of the gas station, the new hotel,
the old Sun Herald property. Everything along
that is moving toward the comrarcial use and to a

better business environrent where thers will be
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the tax implications and, cbvicusly, revenue, I
made the investment and haeve that propsrty For the
SETe Yeason,

Currently, T have struggled with areas
arourd me with homelessness. I drive from my
condo, which T live cn Beach Boulevard, to that
building every day., I can tell you that I have to
probably cross two or three people that are
horeless every day., I am diseppointed to sese
that.

2rd I do appreciate what you quys do,
you know, in your greoup and faith-bassd
organizaticns who fccus on improving that. This
is just not the property for a five-pedroom home.
That's where I stand.

T just want to focus on -- it's a
commercial property. let's keep Debuys where it
resds to ke commercially and continue to develcp
it that way 55 you have planned in your zoning.
Thank you,

CHATRMAN CELIENGER:

Thank you.

Ts there anyone else speaking in
cpposition? Enyone speaking in oppesiticn?

I will state for the record that we did

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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receive five letters in cgposition of this as well
via e-7ail. I won't read all of those, Scme of
those are pretty lengthy, tut we did veceive five,
with scre of those being adjacent preperty owners
on Tebuys Read.

%With there keing no other people in
creosition, is thers anything you guys would like
to address that you heard in creosition?

I wonid just Iiks to address the code
vieclaticn, ard I had read that in the e-mail that
was sukmitted from the person who spoke. I'd just
like to explain just 2 little bit abcut it, It
was & fallen linb that had fallen on our progsriy
and it cccurred after we had moved our staff in
Pugust with cre of those storms that came through.
We didn't sven realize it for a pericd of time,
but when the -- and we have scme nonprofit
partners who do our yard work and things like
that. W¥e had asked them to try to -- to cut it
dewn and remove it.,

But the violation came to our actual
property address at 2793 Fernwood and no one is

there on a regular basis anyrore. %We had not bsen

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

W - oy s L R

[l T S T S S S SR
~ ;e W N = O

Lo S I N ]

w

87

checking that mailbox. Our business address with
the State and Federal government is at the Knight
Nenprofit Center, so it went unnoticed uvntil we
heard frem Paul Tisdale when it was lifted up.

That tree has ncw been removed. The
issue has been resolved. We agpreciate it being
brought to your attention and I appreciate the
ability to tell you that it's been taken care of.

I would also just like to point out that
we were the fiscal agent for South Mississippi
RIDS Task Force in the conditional use that was
granted in, I believe, 2018 or '1% for the
property Just right dewm the street, se I just
wanted to meke everyone aware thal there was a
conditional use granted right there in the same
neighborhood. Let's see.

M. KING:

It's the white building, if I'm not
mistakan.
MS. WITTMANM:

It sure is. So it's right there. So
that, I believe, has got seven units of
transiticnal housing where pecple do sleep there
overnight, and they are -— you kncw, it's sst to

serve a very specific populaticn and that's been
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in cperation, as I said, since those renovations
have been corpletsd sinca about 2019,

Thank you.
KR, CBRRCN:

I have & guestien for you. These pecple
that are going to be residents there will ke

working, so they will not ke lolitering arcund all

Ard there will be no direct scclial

services on-site, 8o when I talk about counseling
groups, that's all off-site stuff, whether through
the Home of Grace or our new counseling program
callsd Crown Joy, which is in Gulfcor:, so there
will be no direct services on-site. BR1l these
individuals will ke working and coming back and
living here just like it's their residence.

VR, CRRRCH:

Frnd if you had sore of the horeless
pecple starting to hang around there, you would
have them rewoved, wouldn't you?
¥R. BPANT:

Yes, sir. I have a great relationship

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130




LR

e

W oW - oy

O R

W o~ oy

27
23
24
25

8%

with the police chief of Biloxi, the major, all
that as well, so any kind of complaints or
anything like that would be taken care of, But I
don't foresee that being a problem because this
isn't advertised or isn’t going to be known as
like a homeless shelter. This is, you know,
housing.

&lso, too, just to say, you know, the
thing about the tree, the guys in our progrem are
the ongs that cut the tree and cleaned up the
progerty that was the complaint before.

Anyway, thank you.

MR, CRRRON:

Thank you,
CHATRMAEN DELIENGER:

Jerry.
MR. CREEL:

Iet me address this from two
standpoints. MNurber 1, we have worked with Home
of Grace kefore. T can tell you they are no
nensense.  They run a great operation.

Many of you may be familiar with what's
new called the Country Living Mebile Home Park up
on Oild €7. It's just past Hudson Krohn Road. For

years, that was a code enforcement nightmare that

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130

we had to deal with all the tire.

vayoce five years ago, Howe of Grace took
that over. They went in., They cleaned it up.
We've had ahsolutely no calls there. Ii's
actually a showpilece for mebile homes now. The
grass is naver ovsrgrown. Yeou don't ses trash and

litter arourd. Everything is raintained. They've

dere a really grest job with thaf, so our workirg

case cara in, we had to lecek through the
definitions to ses which cne it most clossly
identified with., And the definition of a halfway
house is a licenszd home for juveniles or adult
rersens on release from a more restrictive
confinerent or initlally placed in lieu of a much
nore restrictive custedial confinemant, wherein
sugervision, reheabilitaticn and counseling is
provided to assist residents back into sccisty
enabling them to live independently. 2And I think
that's exactly what we just heard that this group
dees, so the title of halfway house is exactly
what our definiticn calls it, you knew, based on

what wa've heard.
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It is & conditional usa. If you look
scecifically at the property and you look around
it, everything around it is ccommercial, except on
the east side of it. There is about a 10- or
12-foot wooded buffer strip there, and on the
other side of that is Fernweod &partments and
those kuildings actuwally face -- that building
actually faces the opposite direction., It faces
east, Everything else is comrercial.

The staff has looked at this and based
on cur reputation with Home of Grace, staff has no
chjection and reconmends approval.

MR. DEIAHOUSEY: '

I would like to make a motion, I move
to agprove the arplicant's request.
MR. CRRRON:

Secord.

CHATRMEN CELLENGER:

Motien by Mr. Delahousey; ssccrd by
Mr, Carron.

Discussion, Jerry,' with this
conditional use, what would revoke a conditional
use? I mean, whait —- would it have te be a nurmker
of iters? Would it have to —-- I mean, you kncw,

what would ke able to revoke this corditional use

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

if -
MR, CREEL:

Well, there &re the nine corditions
there, or in addition te that, if it beccmes a
public nuisance, somathing that we could classify
as a public nuisance, which encorpasses & numker
of different things.

But if, for whatever reascn, we recaiwve

them & chance to corrsst whatavwer th

i
o
i
7
“
@
b
1%

I1f, for whatever reason, that issue is not
corrected, then it cculd be brought back to the
Planning Commission and the City Council to rewvoke
that conditicnal use permii, so thers is
safequards on this in the event that we do have
problems,
CHRIRMAN DELIFNGER:

Thank you.

Any other discussion?
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Just befeore my fellow commissicners vote
on this, I would just like to make a couple of
CCINTants.,

I live in this ward. Mr. Linenterger is

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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my neignbor. I have no cbjecticns to this coming
into Ward 5. Few people want to have a
transitional house shelter -~ not shelter,
transiticonal hore or halfway house in their
neightorhood, kut then where? Everybedy that has
spoken in cgpositicn today has sald, well, we
favor it, but just not in our neighborhccd. Whose
neighborhoed is --
MR, MCCARTY:

Screvhere else.
MR. DELAHCUSEY:

Pleagse. T have the floor.. Okay?

We've tried to send then to Weolrarket.
Woolmarket is getting a little bit fed up because
wa're trying to move them tnere.

We had a trevendous preblem when a
private preoperty cwner on fris Street in Biloxi
chopped down all that wooded area. There were
hundreds of horeless camwps in that area. Okay?
Homelessness is s preblem in Biloxi.

So I would take exception to say that a
transiticnal heme like this is going to attract
hereless pecple to hang around there. Whers are
the hereless recple supposed to go? This is a

partial seluticon at least for five of the people

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130

24

that may have keen living in a carp in the woeds
that were torn down.

Mississicpi has sbandoned pretty much
the horeless situation. Cur state hospital,

r a solution. You can't sen

pecple to Whitfield anymors, and so it's just --

we've besn forced to deal with it.

on this corpany. The right monitoring and people

gverseeing it, I think it's -- I have no prchlexs
with it.

Feople say, well, you knew, Debuys Read
doesn't want this type of business. Well, theres's
a cannabls dispensary on Debuys Road also., I
den't knew that that's caused any problems since
it's been there. 8o I would just like to say that
I'm in favor of this.

MR. STANCGVICH:

I've got one more cuestion I forgot to

ask. I think I know the answer to it. Rut the

only meals servad there will be for the resicdents,

Sirapson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130
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Yes, sir, So all the residents -—
thet's a good question tco -~ are required to buy
their own food and cook their cwn meals just like
they are anywhere., So there's nobody coming from
cutside for meals or anything like that?

M3, WITTMENG:

Mot a soup ¥kitchen.
MR. ARBNT:

Yeah. No. They take -~
MR, STANOVICH:

That's what I wanted to get to.

M5, WITTMANN:

I knew that's where you wsre going.
MR. ARENT:

Essentially, they are reating a rccom.
It*s their house. They heve to buy their own
food. They have to ccok thelr own food., No
cutside people coming in.

CHATRMEN DELLENGER:

Dr. Drawdy.
LR, CRANDY:

Jerry, one thing that they mentioned, to
the north of it, they said that there are already
scre pacple living and having residents at night

over there.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

M, WITTMANN;

Sir, cculd vou ask it again? I didn't
hear.
LR, DCRAENDY:

Just to the rerth going up [ebuys Road,
you said thet there was scwe other pecple -— that

you had a heme there, that people were living

there and they had besn there and it was 2

Ch, it's on Fernwood., It's just a
little further east on Fernweed, about a bleck ard
a half at most, I think she could shows you on the
rap again,

DR. L[RARDY:

Vo, again, is living thers ncw?
MS. WITIMANM:

So that building is cwned by South
Mississippi AIDS Task Force, and so it -~ we were
the fiscal agent for the funds that they raceived
through HMississippl Home Corporation in 2018, It
was corpleted by 2019, We had to -- w2 had to
requast conditional use for the rerovation at that

tire because it is in that same NB zoning area,
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and it was granted and it's been operating -- and
it's been operating since that tirme.
CR. CRAWDY:

There are people living in it today?
MS. WITTMANN:

Yes, sir,

CR. DREWDY:

How many?
MS. WITTMENN:

I think there's seven different units
within that facility.

CR. DRANMDY:

Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Jerry, I think they mentioned another
facility just to the south of there, is that
correct, that houses --

MR. CREEL:

No. That's east. It's east of there on
Fernwecod, yes. That's what she just described.

No. There is a cannabis dispensary
scuth of here,

CHAIRMEN DELLENGER:
No, not that. I thought they were

saying there was another hcme.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MS., WITTVAMNN:
Mr. Dellenger, I think you're talking
about Gulf Ccast Rescue Missicn.
CHRTRMEN DELIENGER:
Yes.
M3, WITTMANM:

Yes. 8o I weould call that facility a

homeless shelter.

of this?
CR. CRANDY:

It's cn Mission Lane.
MR. CREEL:

It's on Mission Lane, at the very end of
Mission Lane.

CHAIRMAN DELIENGER:

Okay. But that's just south of this?
MR. CREEL:

Yes.

And T can tell you, too, that Tom Mims
dcesn't put up with foolishness either. Those
guys either work or they get out. He dcesn't
spend time up there -- I have witnessed it

firsthand the way he runs that place.
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MR. STANOVICH:

Jerry, how many pecple do you think are
at Gulf Coast Rescue Mission?
MR. CREEL:

It varies from time to time. The most I
have ever seen down there at cne time was probably
10. It could ke more than that. It could be less
than that at different times.

But Tem, he has a regimen down there.
You either comply with it or you don't. And they
work. He puts them to work when they go dewn
there.

CR. DRANDY:

It's been in cperation prekbably in
excess of 35, 40 years.
MS. WITTMANN:

Yes, a long time.
MS, MRGEE:

Lo y'all have a food pantry? OAre you
going to have a focd pantry?
MR. ARANT:

Not at this -- no. That's not what we
are about.
MS. MAGEE:

You said they will ccok for themselves?
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MR. RRANT:
Yeah. Seo they all will have jobs.

And go buy their feed?
MR. ARANT:

Yes, ma'am.
CHATRMAN CELIENGER:

Is there any other discussien?

motion ard a second for

A1l those in favor, please raise your
hand. Mr. Lechner, Mr. Parker, Mr. Todaro,
Ms, Magee, Ms, Shaw, Mr. Stanovich, Mr. Bcgard,
Mr, Celahousey, Dr. Drawdy, Mr. Carron, Mr. King,
Mr. Snow, Mr. Poulos; myself, Mr. Dellenger.
We'll let the record show that's unanimous,

The next case that we have is Case
Nurker 25-051-PC, John P. Foster, which is a
request for two conditional use approvals to
authorize the establishment of two single-family
resicences on a single lot and also to allow those
single-family residences to be used as short-term

rentals ugen a parcel of land .23 of an acre, more
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